
 

S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2018 Minutes\12-11-18 Minutes.doc 

Minutes of the Public Safety Committee Meeting – December 10, 2018 
 
Members Present:  Phil Wedekind, Tom Kolb, and Mike Plautz. Others Present:  Tom Pinion, Attorney Truman, Mayor 
Palm, Chief M. Schauf, Fire Chief K. Stieve, Wade Peterson, Tony Gilman, Al Mueller, Shannon Hill, Steph Shanks, Kathy 
Sellner, Bill’s Towing, Craig’s, and Ben Bromley.  
 
Call to Order - Committee Chairman Phil Wedekind called the meeting to order at 2:30P.M. at Baraboo Municipal Building. 
Compliance with the Open Meeting Law was noted. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the agenda as posted. 
Motion carried unanimously. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve the minutes of the November 12, 2018 
meeting. Motion carried unanimously.  
 

New Business 
a. Consider renewing North Central Wisconsin Storm Water Coalition Cooperative Agreement – Engineer Pinion presented the 

background to the Committee. He said that this is the five-year renewal and is a housekeeping item. It was moved by Kolb, 

seconded by Plautz to renew the North Central Wisconsin Storm Water Coalition Cooperative Agreement as presented. 

Motion carried 3-0. 

 

b. Review and approve proposed parking lot Lease Agreement with I A.M. for the city-owned parking lot located south and 

west of 106 Walnut Street – Pinion stated that the price negotiated with Al Mueller, owner of I A.M. Dairy is $1500.00/year. 

It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to recommend approval of the proposed parking lot Lese Agreement with I A.M. 

Dairy as presented. Motion carried 3-0. 

 

c. Review and discussion of on-line petition for 4-way stop signs at 5th and Oak – Pinion said that this had been discussed at a 

previous meeting where there had been an inquiry about this. He said the City has received a petition from Shannon Hill to 

be part of the agenda. He said that the City has been given a signed petition for this request. He said that this is on the 

agenda for review and discussion, without action being taken at this time. Chief Schauf said that the concerns that are being 

addressed are things that he doesn’t tread lightly on. He said that he has pulled some statistical data on traffic crashes, not 

only at this intersection, but additional intersections within the downtown area, including 5th and Ash, 5th and Broadway, 2nd 

and Broadway, and 2nd and Oak. He said that 2nd and Oak being a 4-way stop in the downtown area. He said that the number 

of crashes in this intersection are relatively consistent with others, and in reviewing these crashes, they are actually related to 

someone violating that stop sign. He said that they refer back to MUTCD for direction, and there is a stop sign within a 

block of either side of this intersection; therefore, it does not seem to support a stop sign at this time. He said that he does 

understand the concerns, and he does not want to see any pedestrians hit before anything is done; however, they do have to 

be able to support what is done. Kolb, said with the park there and the amount of traffic from the Coffee Bean, even though 

it does not support it, he feels it makes sense. Schauf said that one thing that would have to be looked at is wit installing stop 

signs there, there would be a potential of removing some parking, and re-engineering the intersection so that vision would 

not be impeded. Schauf said that if the Committee decided to place a stop sign one of the things that has to be looked at is 

how it would properly be done with the engineering there. He said whenever safety is looked at, it is called the triangle of 

safety, the three “Es”, engineering, enforcement, and education. Engineering, is something that has to be designed to be 

safety; enforcement, law enforcement has to stand up and make sure everyone is following the rules; and education, people 

have to understand it. Pinion said that stop signs use to be installed to control speed; however, studies have proven that this 

is counterproductive, because people make up for lost time in between signs. He said that with the engineering study, there is 

potential to take of liability putting them in where they are not warranted. He said that a warrant analysis is computer rated 

operations which requires traffic counts. He said that the City could provide the traffic count data to an engineer that could 

analyze it, which would cost approximately $1,000. He said that the five-year of the crash history at this intersection is 7 

crashes, two of them are hit-and-run sideswipes, three are people turning into an alley and backing into on-coming traffic, 

the all two involved people running the stop sign and not seeing the on-coming traffic. Steph Shanks asked if there was any 

way to make the stop sign more visible. Schauf said that there are some things that can be added that would be relatively 

inexpensive to make them more visible; however, they are generally a temporary measure. He said that the problem with 

these is that people get use to them and no longer see them. It was the consensus of the Committee that this item would be 

brought back to the Committee in January as an action item. 

 

d. Consideration of Vehicle and Equipment Towing Proposals for 2019/2020 – Schauf said that this was coming back to the 

Committee based on the action from last month. He said on November 12 two of the members were in session when the tow 

contract came up. He said that there were some questions that had come up and his goal was to have the bidders at the 

meeting. He said that subsequently there has been some questions and concerns, and he feels that it is quite possible that two 

out of the three bidders were bidding on different items within the contract, or different understanding of what the proposal 



 

S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2018 Minutes\12-11-18 Minutes.doc 

was, and therefore, he is not sure that the bids were consistent. He said that both bidders, Craig’s and Bill’s are in attendance 

at this meeting. He said the questions is the amount that is billed to the City if a City vehicle has to be towed, and the second 

was a City tow billed to a private party. Attorney Truman said that she did review the original bid documents, and 

apologized saying that she feels that she did not ask the proper questions, and after receiving a call by one of the bidders 

reread the documents and realized that they were confusing. He said that the reason for coming back to the Committee is 

because a recommendation was made; however, it is totally within the legal right to extend the existing contact and to 

rewrite the bid documents and reopen the bidding. Craig’s Towing then addressed the Committee. He stated that he did not 

understand the City towed vehicle vs. a vehicle for the City at the owner’s expense. Craig said that he does have the ability 

to tow heavy equipment. Kathy Sellner, Bill’s Towing then addressed the Committee. She stated the Bill’s has had the 

contract for many years and she feels that it is their duly responsibility to do their checks, ask their questions, ask the Police 

Chief many questions to make sure questions are answered and the bid is being understood. She also said that they have their 

attorney look it over to make sure it is correct; therefore, she feels that it is due diligence to make sure that is done within the 

timeframe. She feel that all the bids are exposed and to open them up again, which everyone would probably bid the same, 

and now Craig’s knows their bid. She stated that they do have the capability to haul heavy trucks; however, Craig’s truck is 

not heavy enough to haul the City units. Bill of Bill’s Towing said that the contract, which they have had for many years, is 

the same contract that comes out every two years, with the same verbiage. He feels that that if his company does not get the 

contract and the property steps were taken to make sure that the bid was submitted correctly, it is really a letdown and 

hardship for them. He said that he feels devastated that the City wants to reopen this when their bid was submitted correctly. 

Bill said that some of the Fire Department’s is very specialized and needs a long under reach for the wheel life to pick it, he 

didn’t say that Craig’s can’t do it; however, but his under reach to haul the pumper would not make. Bill said that when 

hauling this type of equipment he would think that the City would want to know about ratings, or the personnel and type of 

training capacity. He said that he is as high as he can go in the US; he is a Level 3 Certified by TRA. He said that he is 

asking the Committee to go forward with the two-year contract, and re-look at it at the end of the contract. Kolb apologized 

that the City did not explain the documents better, and would encourage that is done in the future. He said that he does feel 

that contractors that are responding to RFPs do have to do their due diligence and make sure that everything is apples to 

apples; therefore, he is against reopening the contract. Plautz said that Bill’s made a compelling argument, and asked when 

the issues were raised. Schauf said that the issues were raised after the Committee’s action; however, it has not been to 

Council. Schauf said that there are two questions; first, the cost of towing a City vehicle, i.e. police car, taxi cab, or fire. The 

second question is the cost to tow a private citizen’s vehicle that the City would then bill to the private citizen. He said that 

he views that as a vehicle being parked illegally, parked in front of a fire hydrant, and needs to be moved because of an 

event. Schauf said that he did not include the third step of an area that the City would bill to a private party, i.e. the police 

respond to a traffic crash and they contact the tow company to tow the vehicle. He said also, as mentioned at the last meeting 

there is towing and recovery, the physical act of towing is one price, and recovery can be a different price, depending upon 

on complicated that recovery gets. Schauf said that it is his understanding, based on the conversation that Craig bids his with 

the understanding that he would be towing all vehicles for the City, crashes and everything else; however, this is not the 

case, it is the towing of City vehicles, and if the City calls the company to tow for an illegally parked vehicle, how much that 

is going to cost, billed to the private party. It was moved by Kolb, Plautz seconded to move forward with the original action 

done at the November meeting. Motion carried 3-0. Kolb asked that staff continue to work on the RFP to make sure 

everything is apples to apples. Kathy Sellner requested to help with the process because she previously was on a National 

Towing Board.  Craig stated that he respects the Committee’s decision; however, he said if the contract were read, one 

wouldn’t have to be lawyer to figure out that anyone would have answered the questions the same way he did, what is the 

public going to pay; Bill’s said that they were not going to charge anything, either for the City, or the private pay.  

 

e. Discuss Public Works Department’s snow plowing operations– Wedekind asked who notifies who and when. Schauf spoke 

to the most recent snow event because he was working patrol. He said about 10 p.m. the rain turned into a snow event and 

began to get slippery, and he and two other officers decided that curves, hills, and the hospital route, which is the standard 

middle of night that the City always hits. He said that a phone call was made and within 30 minutes, there were three trucks 

out. He said that actually the roads that were plowed actually got more slippery than roads that were not. Gilman said that 

they brined, received a call from the PD, three crew members were called in and were out salting until 3:00 a.m. He said that 

he called the officer in charge at 7:00 a.m. and was told the roads seemed to okay at that time; however, the parking lots 

were starting to get slippery where they had not been plowed yet. He called in staff at 8:00 a.m. and they worked until 3:00 

p.m. He said that the crew experienced a breakdown, which caused some communication errors between crews causing a 

couple of streets that was not handled the way they should have. He said that the crew was back in Monday morning at 4:00 

a.m. Schauf said that there was a communication breakdown that happened between Dispatch and the Police Department. He 

said that there was one resident that contacted dispatch to inform that their street had not been taken care of on 15th Avenue, 

the dispatch appropriately sent a message to his working supervisor; however, what dispatch didn’t know was that this 



 

S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2018 Minutes\12-11-18 Minutes.doc 

person wasn’t at his square computer, where the message came in, but rather in the police department working on a case. 

Wedekind said that he has received calls from two drivers that feel they are not being called in early enough. After a lengthy 

discussion, it was stated that snowfalls should be monitored better. 

 

f. Discuss procedures for bidding public construction projects – Kolb said that this year contract went out in June and would 

like to see them go out earlier than that. He said that the streets that are going to be done and the budget is determined in 

October, contracts should be going out earlier. Pinion said that this year it would be going out in March. Pinion said that the 

streets that were bid and not finished in 2018 would be finished at the bid price. He said Washington and Lake Street would 

be the big projects in 2019 to be bid. Kolb then asked about sidewalks. Pinion said that the preliminary estimate for special 

assessments for sidewalk would be going out yet this month. He said the one stand-alone project for sidewalk is Elizabeth, 

from 15th to 16th, and some on Lake Street. Kolb asked if there would be any sidewalk in-fill, if there were money available. 

Pinion said that there is $50,000 for sidewalk maintenance, but the sidewalk special assessment fund is about tapped.  

 

g. Review and approve 2019 budgeted vehicle and equipment purchases for the Public Works Department, Fire Department, 

and Utilities – Gilman presented the background to the Committee. He said for the pickup truck they were hoping to open 

the umbrella a bit and get three quotes each from GM, Ford, and Chrysler; however, we only received three quotes. He said 

that for the model pickup wanted by Public Works and Utilities, Portage Ford is $27,863, and with all extras, it would be 

approximately $30,563. He said the budgeted amount was roughly $33,000 per pickup. Kolb asked if these pickups were all 

beyond their use of life. Gilman said that not beyond their useful life; however, they are getting close to the point if a move 

is not made at this time there would not be much resale value through the auction site. Pinion said that this pricing is for five 

vehicles, three Public Works, one Park, and one Utilities. He said whether one or five vehicles are ordered it is a volume 

discount. Peterson said that the Utility vehicle would be a second vehicle, not a replacement. It was moved by Kolb, 

seconded by Plautz seconded to approve the equipment purchases from Portage Ford as presented. Motion carried 3-0. 

Gilman said that along with the budgeted items were skid steers. He said that he reached out to several vendors, Statz & 

Sons, which is Case came back with an offer $100.00 less than Brooks, which is John Deere. He said that this does not 

change the outcome of the quotes received, Mid-State Equipment, which is Bobcat, which is what the department currently 

has still remains the lowest cost. It was moved by Kolb, seconded by Plautz to approve Mid-State Equipment bid for 2019 

Skid Steer purchase as presented.  

 

h. Review and approve Fire Department’s Training Officer Position Description – Kevin Stieve presented the Position 

Description to the Committee.  After questions, explanations, and answers from Stieve, and Administrator Gieck, it was 

moved by Plautz, seconded by Kolb to approve the position requirements as presented. Motion carried 3-0. 

 

i. Review and recommendation to adopt new Sewer Utility Rate Structure – Peterson presented the Utility Rate Structure to 

the Committee. He said that currently, everything is completely based on flow. He said that the auditors said that Industry 

Standard is a fixed cost and a variable cost. He said the Water Utility has a variable cost and a fixed cost. He said he has 

been working with this for three or four months now, and the hope was to present this to the Committee two weeks ago. 

Peterson said that the dollar amount in the budget did not change. He said that there are some customers that will see a 

change, plus and/or minus in their utility bill. Kolb asked why. Peterson said because of the new structure, now they are 

based on a fixed cost and a variable cost, so someone that used 2000 gallons of water in a quarter got billed $31.96 because 

we had set a minimal of 7,500. However, now they have a cost per the size of the meter and what they use, so in that 

instance, customer’s bill would go down $19.00/quarter. Peterson said that someone that has 30,000 of wastewater, their bill 

would tip the other way. It was stated that this is a much fairer system, and more structured. Peterson said that the high-

strength rate will be coming down, and he still feels the costs can be recouped. Kolb moved to recommend adopting the new 

Sewer Utility Rate Structure as presented. Plautz seconded the motion. Motion carried 3-0. 

 

j. Review and approval of monthly Billing Adjustments/Credits for Sewer and Water Customers for November 2018 – 

Peterson said that 99.9 percent of these are ones going on the tax roll. Kolb moved, Plautz seconded to approve the monthly 

billing adjustments/credits for Sewer and Water Customers for November 2018 as presented. Motion carried 3-0.  

 

Reports 

a. Utility Superintendent’s Report – Peterson said that Bio-solids is up and running, proficiency testing is being done today and 

tomorrow. He said the department’s proficiency standard was 20% and was getting that very consistently this morning.  

 

b. Street Superintendent’s Report – Gilman said that in October and November the department was consumed by leaf pickup. 

He said that the salt/sand has been mixed and in the bin ready to go. He said that the site for the new building is ready to go. 



 

S:\Minutes\Public Safety Committee\2018 Minutes\12-11-18 Minutes.doc 

He said that plow truck that was approved by the Committee last year for 2018 would be coming in mid-January. He stated 

that the garbage truck that was being hoped for December 1, is now mid-February.  

 

c. Police Chief’s Report – Nothing to report. 

 

d.  Fire Chief’s Report – Stieve handed documents for the Automatic Aid Agreement to the Committee. Stieve gave a brief 

explanation and asked the Committee to look it over and bring questions back to the next meeting. He said ALICE training 

was done in St. Clare Hospital. He said that several responders recognized tomorrow night for their years of service. Stieve 

said that the department would be burning down the old Farm Kitchen on December 22, and will be working with the man 

with the brewery. Stieve complimented Gilman on coordinating the City auction, and for the City mechanic for continuing to 

diagnose the problem with the head and rescue square.  

 

ADJOURNMENT –     It was moved by Plautz, seconded by Wedekind to adjourn at 4:01 p.m. Motion carried.  
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Phil Wedekind, Chairman 
 


